Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Agency Office
622 S. Jemez Trail
Yucca Valley, CA 92284-1440

Board of Directors

Judy Corl-Lorono, President

J. Dennis Staley, Vice President
Terry Burkhart, Secretary

Michael McBride, Director 760/364-2315 Phone

J. Larry Coulombe, Director 760/364-3412 Fax
Marina D West, PG, General Manager
A Public Agency www.bdvwa.org

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

BOARD MEETING OFFICE
1720 N. Cherokee Trail, Landers, CA 92285
Tuesday, February 25, 2014 - 6:00 p.m.

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS - The Board of Directors and Staff will discuss the following
items, and the Board will consider taking action, if so inclined.

The Public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item.

When giving your public comment, please have your information prepared, if you wish to be
identified for the record then please state your name. Due to time constraints, each member of
the public will be allotted three-minutes to provide their public comment.

5. LETTER IN SUPPORT OF DESERT-WISE LIVING SERIES GRANT APPLICATION FOR
MORONGO BASIN CONSERVATION ASSOCIATION
Board considers taking the following action(s):
1. Authorize President Corl-Lorono to sign a letter in support of a Morongo Basin
Conservation Association grant application to The Rose Institute in support of their
Desert-Wise Living Series.

6. CSA 70/W-1 REORGANIZATION - PREPARATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND
PLAT MAP FOR AREA ANNEXATION
Board to consider taking the following action(s):
1. Authorize General Manager to execute $3,000 proposal from Section Thirty Seven
Consultants for preparation of legal description and plat map required for the Local
February 25, 2014 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

Posted 02-21-2014
Page 1 of 3



Agency Formation Commission application to annex of County Service Area
70/Zone W-1 (Goat Mountain/Landers) into Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency.

7. CSA70/W-1 REORGANIZATION - PROFESSIONAL AUDIT SERVICES
Board to consider taking the following action(s):

1. Authorize General Manager to execute proposal from Rogers, Anderson, Malody
and Scott, LLC dated February 20, 2014 in the amount of $5,000 in anticipation of
approval to annex of County Service Area 70/Zone W-1 (Goat Mountain/Landers)
into Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency.

8. CSA70/W-1 REORGANIZATION - EPA LIFE CYCLE DETERIORATION
Information and discussion item only.

9. PRESENTATION ON THE ENGINEERING EVALUATION AND RECOMMENDATION
FOR WELL NOS. 2, 3 AND 4
Information and discussion item only.

10. FORMATION OF AD HOC COMMITTEE
Board to consider formation of Ad Hoc Committee to assist with the evaluation of solar
power options for Agency facilities.

11. STANDING COMMITTEES, AD HOC COMMITTEE & OTHER MEETING ASSIGNMENTS
2014
Board considers taking the following action(s):
President, with Board consensus, to consider approving the Standing Committees, Ad Hoc
Committee & Other Meeting Assignments for 2014

12. DISBURSEMENTS JANUARY 2014
Recommended Action:
Ratify Check Register (payment of bills) for January 2014.

13. CONSENT ITEMS - The following items are expected to be routine and non-controversial
and will be acted on by the Board at one time without discussion, unless a member of the
Public or member of the Board requests that the item be held for discussion or further
action.

a. Financial Statements January 2014
1. Balance Sheet
2. Statement of Revenue and Expense
3. General Account (Union Bank)
4. Disbursements
5. Local Agency Investment Fund Balance Timeline
Service Order Report, January 2014
Production Report, January 2014
Regular Board Meeting Minutes, January 28, 2014
Dissolve the “Ames/Means Ad Hoc Committee” formed to assist the Agency in
developing the Ames/Means Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Program.

pooo

Recommended Action:
Approve as presented (ltems a - e):

14. MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT ITEMS

February 25, 2014 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
Posted 02-21-2014
Page 2 of 3



15. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Any person may address the Board on any matter within the Agency’s jurisdiction on items
not appearing on this agenda.

When giving your public comment, please have your information prepared. if you wish to be
identified for the record then please state your name. Due to time constraints, each
member of the public will be allotted three-minutes to provide their public comment. State
Law prohibits the Board of Directors from discussing or taking action on items not included
on the agenda.

16. VERBAL REPORTS - including Reports on Courses/Conferences/Meetings.

a. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT
b. DIRECTORS' REPORT
c. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

17. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
18. ADJOURNMENT

In accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 54954.2, this
agenda has been posted in the main lobby of the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency, 622 S.
Jemez Trail, Yucca Valley, CA not less than 72 hours if prior to a Regular meeting, date and time
above; or in accordance with California Government Code Section 54956 this agenda has been
posted not less than 24 hours if prior to a Special meeting, date and time above.

As a general rule, agenda reports or other written documentation has been prepared or
organized with respect to each item of business listed on the agenda.

Copies of these materials and other discloseable public records in connection with an open
session agenda item, are also on file with and available for inspection at the Office of the Agency
Secretary, 622 S. Jemez Trail, Yucca Valley, California, during regular business hours, 8:00 A.M.
to 4:30 P.M., Monday through Friday. If such writings are distributed to members of the Board of
Directors on the day of a Board meeting, the writings will be available at the entrance to the
Board of Directors meeting room at the Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency.

Internet: Once uploaded, agenda materials can also be viewed at www.bdvwa.org.

Public Comments: You may wish to submit your comments in writing to assure that you are able
to express yourself adequately.

Per Government Code Section 54954.2, any person with a disability who requires a modification
or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in the meeting,
should contact the Board's Secretary at 760-364-2315 during Agency business hours.

February 25, 2014 Board of Directors Meeting Agenda
Posted 02-21-2014
Page 3 of 3



AGENDA ITEM # 5



BIGHORN DESERT VIEW WATER AGENCY
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTAL

Meeting Date: February 25, 2014

To: Board of Directors Budgeted: N/A
Budgeted Amount: N/A
Cost: $0
Funding Source: N/A

From: Marina D. West General Counsel Approval: N/A
CEQA Compliance: N/A

Subject: Letter in Support of Morongo Basin Conservation Association Desert-Wise Living
Series Grant Application to The Rose Institute

SUMMARY

For several years the Agency has participated in the Desert-Wise Living Series Program
hosted by the Morongo Basin Conservation Association (MBCA). This program includes the
annual self-guided tour of private and public properties showcasing low water use
landscaping. The MBCA also conducts periodic landscape installation workshops to assist
residents with design and installation of their own low water use gardens.

In order to help with the cost of the programs (advertising, printed materials, signage, etc.)
the MBCA is applying for a grant from The Rose Institute. The grant application requests
letters of support from stakeholders. Staff recommends that the Board approve the attached
letter of support as the Desert-wise Living Series has a primary purpose in promoting water
conservation which is of primary importance to BDVWA as well.

RECOMMENDATION
The Board considers taking the following action:

1. Authorize President Corl-Lorono to sign a letter in support of a Morongo Basin
Conservation Association grant application to The Rose Institute in support of their
Desert-Wise Living Series.

BACKGOUND/ANALYSIS

No further analysis provided.

PRIOR RELEVANT BOARD ACTION(S)
None



Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency

Agency Office
622 S. Jemez Trail
Yucca Valley, CA 92284-1440

Board of Directors

Judy Corl-Lorono, President

J. Dennis Staley, Vice President
Terry Burkhart, Secretary

Michael McBride, Director 760/364-2315 Phone
J. Larry Coulombe, Director 760/364-3412 Fax
Marina D West, P.G., General Manager =

A Public Agency www.bdvwa.org

February 26, 2014

The Rose Foundation, California Wildlands Grassroots Fund
Via Email: sallwildlands @ gmail.com

Re: Morongo Basin Conservation Association for immediate funding of their 2014
Desert-Wise Landscape Series

Please accept this letter of support for the Morongo Basin Conservation Association’s
request for funding for their collaborative education on the responsible use of water and
energy. The Series has been a powerful and successful outreach that fulfills our water
management directives to promote water conservation and efficiency.

Prior to the Series, this conservation program was supported through a regional
coalition of water agencies, whose mission was water awareness and conservation.
Last year, the funding from the coalition dried up and so did much of the public
education. The BDVWA board recognized the value and need to support this vital
program and took steps to support the continuation of the Series. Separately, the board
earmarked funds and recruited volunteers for the 2013 Desert-Wise Landscape Tour.
Our board has continued that commitment for 2014.

Please feel free to contact me using the information below this letter, with any questions
you may have. Thank you for grassroots level conservation across California.

Sincerely,

Judy Corl-Lorono
President, Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency
bdvwa @mindspring.com



AGENDA ITEM # 6



BIGHORN DESERT VIEW WATER AGENCY
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTAL

Meeting Date: February 25, 2014

To: Board of Directors Budgeted: $2,000 est. (Jan. 28, 2014)
Cost: $3,000
From: Marina D. West General Counsel Approval: N/A

CEQA Compliance: N/A

Subject: Preparation of Legal Description and Plat Map for Area Annexation (CSA
70/Zone W-1) into the Bighorn-Desert View Water by Section Thirty Seven
Consultants in the Amount of $3,000

SUMMARY

On January 28, 2014 the Board directed staff to proceed with an application to dissolve
County Service Area 70/Zone W-1 (Goat Mountain/Landers) and authorized a $2,000 budget
for preparation of the legal description and plat map. Subsequently staff obtained proposals
from two firms, Section Thity Seven Consultants ($3,000) and NV5/Nolte Associates
($5,000).

Staff recommends the Board approve execution of the proposal from Section Thirty Seven
Consultants in the amount of $3,000 effectively increasing the approved budget by $1,000.

RECOMMENDATION
The Board considers taking the following action(s):

1. Authorize General Manager to execute $3,000 proposal from Section Thirty Seven
Consultants for preparation of legal description and plat map required for the Local
Agency Formation Commission application to annex of County Service Area
70/Zone W-1 (Goat Mountain/Landers) into Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency.

BACKGOUND/ANALYSIS
No further analysis provided.
PRIOR RELEVANT BOARD ACTION(S)

1/28/2014 Motion No. 14-001 authorizing staff to initiate an application for the dissolution of
County Service Area 70/Zone W-1 (Goat Mountain/Landers); and establish an initial project
budget of $41,000 from unrestricted reserves for expenses outlined in the staff report; and
authorize execution of Agreement with Stanley R. Hoffman, Associates in the amount of
$9,500 plus a 10% contingency.

12/19/2013 Motion No. 13-079 directing staff to investigate and accumulate information to
bring back to the Board regarding a possible “merger’ with CSA 70/Zone W-1 (Goat
Mountain/Landers).



2/11/2013 Board Strategic Planning Workshop which identifies consolidation with W-1 as a
Board objective.

2/10/2012 Board Strategic Planning Workshop which identifies consolidation with W-1 as a
Board objective.



SECTION THIRTY SEVEN

CONSULTANTS

Marina West

General Manager

Bighorn Desert View Water Agency
622 Jemez Trail

Yucca Valley, CA 92284

February 19, 2014

Regarding: Proposal for Services —Preparation of Legal Description and Plat for an Area
Annexation into the Bighorn Desert View Water Agency Boundaries.
(Section 37 Proposal No. 37-100102)

Ms. West,

Thank you for the opportunity to propose on the Surveying Services you require for the proposed
LAFCO process to annex additional areas into the Bighorn Desert View Water Agency
Boundaries.

Mr. David Rodriguez has briefed me on your needs. Based on my discussions with him, and the
materials [ have received, | have developed the attached “Exhibit “A” — Scope of Services” to
outline the scope of work required to accomplish this. The fee for these services is outlined in
“Exhibit “B” — Compensation.”

After reviewing the proposal, if you find it acceptable, please sign the agreement and return and
we will commence with work immediately. If you should wish to discuss the scope or any of the
terms of the agreement, do not hesitate to contact me.

[ look forward to engaging on this project and working for its success.

Respectfully Submitted,

K.

Benjﬁnin Daniel Egan, PE, PLS
Principal Engineer

Licensed by the State Board for Professional Engineers, Land Surveyors and Geologists
Civil Engineering License Number 73070, Expires, 12/31/2014
Land Surveyors License Number 8756, Expires, 12/31/2014

Section Thirty Seven Consultants, Inc. - A California Corporation (760) 469-9107 1
77-570 Springfield Lane, Suite M, Palm Desert, CA 92211



SECTION THIRTY SEVEN |

CONSULTANTS |

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLIENT AND CONSULTANT
AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO AT Palm Desert, CA, made this 19th day of February, 2014 by and between Bighorn
Desert View Water Agency, care of Marina West, General Manager, 622 Jemez Trail, Yucca Valley, CA 92284,
hereinafter called "Client," and Section Thirty Seven, Inc. a California corporation, herein called "Consultant."
Client and Consultant agree as follows:
A. Client retains Consultant to perform services for:
Professional Surveying Services for preparation of a metes and bounds legal description and exhibit
plat for a proposed annexation of additional area for submission to LAFCO and the SBE as generally
depicted on the attached Exhibit “C".
hereinafter called "Project."
B. Consultant agrees to perform the following scope of services:
As recited in the Exhibit "A" dated February 19, 2014
C. Client agrees to compensate Consultant for such services as follows:
As recited in the Exhibit "B" dated February 19, 2014
D. This Agreement is subject to Provisions of Agreement 1 through 49 attached herewith, and the terms

and conditions contained in initialed exhibits attached herewith and made a part hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereby execute this agreement upon the terms and conditions stated above and
on the day and year indicated above.

By: By:
Title:  Principal Title:
Date: February 19th, 2014 Date:
Proposal No: 37-100102 P.O. No:

Section Thirty Seven Consultants, Inc. - A California Corporation (760) 469-9107
77-570 Springfield Lane, Suite M, Palm Desert, CA 92211




SECTION THIRTY SEVEN |

CONSULTANTS |

Exhibit “A” — Scope of Services
February 19*, 2014 - Proposal #37-100102

Task 1 — Legal Description and Exhibit Plat for Proposed Area Annexation

Consultant shall utilize information provided by the client along with available public records to prepare a Legal
Description and Exhibit Plat identifying the limits for the proposed Annexation of additional area into the Bighorn
Desert View Water Agency Boundaries, as depicted on Exhibit “C” of this proposal. All work shall be prepared under
the supervision of a qualified licensed land surveyor in compliance with the requirements of the Local Agency
Formation Commission (LAFCO) and the State Board of Equalization (SBE). Said items will be prepared as Exhibits “A”
and “B” for attachment to the LAFCO annexation application. The legal description will prepared as a metes and
bounds description as required by LAFCO with a separate description for each individual area along with
accompanying scaled plats and detail sheets as necessary for clear depiction of the areas to be annexed. Exhibits
shall also include all current APN numbers of all parcels within the limits along with a numerical listing as required by
the State Board of Equalization.

Consultant shall furnish one set of signed and stamped original documents along with a CD containing GIS shape files,
APN listings, PDF files and electronic CAD data of all materials for use by LAFCO and the SBE.

Schedule:

Consultant shall make every effort to expedite the project. Typical turn around for the services scoped herein is 10
working days from receipt of a signed agreement.

Exclusions:

This proposal excludes any item not explicitly listed in the list of tasks above.
Client Responsibilities:

Client shall provide Consultant and his subordinate’s access to the site if required.

Client shall provide Consultant a current title report and/or other supporting documents necessary for completing
the legal descriptions and plats.

All Agency Fees, including Plan Check Fees, Review Fees, Inspection Fees, etc... are the responsibility of the Client.

Section Thirty Seven Consultants, Inc. - A California Corporation (760) 469-9107 o)
77-570 Springfield Lane, Suite M, Paim Desert, CA 92211




SECTION THIRTY SEVEN ‘

CONSULTANTS |

Exhibit “B” — Fee Schedule
February 19", 2014 - Proposal #37-100102
Task 1 — Legal Description and Exhibit Plat for Area Annexation $3,000
Total $3,000

Hourly Rates and Reimbursable Expenses

Any work completed on a time and material basis that is outside of the scope of this proposal will be completed at
the following hourly rates. Such work will only commence on written authorization of the Client, as authorized by an
additional work request, which shall specify not to exceed amounts for any extra services.

Principal Engineer $110/hr
Principal Surveyor $110/hr
(1) Man Survey Crew $135/hr
(2) Man Survey Crew $185/hr

Additional items such as mileage, prints, and other incidentals shall be billed to client as they accrue at actual cost.

Provisions
Client shall be billed on an as percent complete basis. All invoices are due on receipt.

Client shall indemnify Consultant and its subordinates and sub-consultants from any damages or litigation arising
from any party, including contractors, subcontractors, neighboring property owners and any public agency having
jurisdiction, except for damages caused solely by negligence of the Consultant, as provided for in the contract
provisions.

This agreement may be terminated by providing written notice of termination by either party at any time. Should the
agreement be terminated, the Client shall pay the consultant for all work performed up to point of receipt of the
notice of termination, and the Consultant shall deliver all work completed to the Client.

The costs outlined in this proposal are valid through 4/30/2014.

Section Thirty Seven Consultants, Inc. - A California Corporation (760) 469-9107 3
77-570 Springfield Lane, Suite M, Palm Desert, CA 92211




SECTION THIRTY SEVEN 1

Exhibit “C” — Project Exhibit

February 19", 2014 - Proposal #37-100102

<
> s
R';’{ 1 e ;” "'4
o, . 5T %,
- e ) :,
» N Goat uqu@'!' fhtsin
: o o
. YNz,
na n P, ot
Aoy Aciyw Ha - "? - uft‘%
% Hutn Ry % RUHY Aug"? “G* ¢
3 furcagyn R0 Lgramon R ‘e s,
it %,
B 5,
= E
: E
- % I Ave 3
£ A Re
&
Jaok Koten L1 gl z Colzln b
4 % Protgs Lo
sla Way L 2 H .
3 3 4,
i3 “ o 5
- . Steaman Ko Stewrma Ry E %
e g : i %
® M z
s - RIRTEIY ==
° 1
i
3 Jravdey ® GSA‘ZOW'-". =
: H Leake Ln i
. i £
W scior Ry & = E
£ Wwass
3 ﬂ ;‘i 5 < E 5 2 assy )
3 o s ¥ 1 § - k3 Sezpe §1
¥ 3 @!’ 5 § = £ Y2 3 H frabefa
3 = H‘ = g £
ke Ra 2 3
£ Handey 9
1y A ‘ N Ra - Npa Ry
I3 7. 2
= Eadd 4 3 thascasry Ur
° & i
E 3 ’ g . : s z
2 e - z
I I A R -~ i
£ § k3 - "_{‘ . pres R f k] E
i = < -
B kg T 3 i
< . o r——
) 1.5 iy Warters Ry
o € Wi, My - $Lg ket . .
< N W Sources: Esi, DeLorme, NAVTEQ, TomTom, Irtermap, ncrement P Com., GEBCO, USGS, FAC, NPS
z z ) L NRCAN, GeoBase, |GH, Kadaster NL. Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, MET, Esei China (Hong Kong),
» f N . Y Tt . swisstopo, and the GiS'User Comimunity I X

CONSULTANTS |

Sostuy Froe Ba

)
.”-9
T
%
Sieirn 9t
Ve 51
tars Ot

Section Thirty Seven Consultants, Inc. - A California Corporation
77-570 Springfield Lane, Suite M, Palm Desert, CA 92211

(760) 469-9107




SECTION THIRTY SEVEN |

CONSULTANTS ‘

PROVISIONS OF AGREEMENT

Client and Consultant agree that the following provisions shall be part of this agreement

1 Client and Consultant agree to cooperate with each other in order to fulfill their responsibilities and obligations under this agreement. Both Client and Consultant shall endeavor to maintain good working
relationships among members of the project team.

2 This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of Client and Consultant.

This agreement shall not be assigned by either Client or Consuitant without the prior written consent of the other.

4 This agreement contains the entire agreement between Client and Consultant relating to the project and the provision of services for the project. Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations or representations
not expressly set forth in this agreement are of no force or effect. Subsequent modifications to this agreement shall be in writing and signed by both Client and Consultant.

5 Consultant's or Client’s waiver of any term, condition or covenant shall not constitute the waiver of any other term, condition or covenant, Consultant's or Client's waiver of any breach of this agreement shall not
constitute the waiver of any other breach of the agreement

6 If any term, condition or covenant of this agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this agreement shall be valid and binding on Client
and Consultant

7 This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

8. If the scope of services includes Consultant’s assistance in applying for governmental permits or approvals, Consultant's assistance shall not constitute a representation, warranty or guarantee that such permits or
approvals will be acted upon favorably by any governmental agency.

9 Upon Consultant's request, Client shall execute and deliver, or cause to be executed and delivered, such additional information, documents or money to pay govemnmental fees and charges which are necessary
for Consultant to perform services pursuant to the terms of this agreement.

10 Client acknowledges all reports, plans, specifications, field data and notes and other documents, including all documents on electronic media, prepared by Consultant are instrumenis of senvice, and shall remain

the property of Consultant and may be used by Consultant without the consent of Client. Upon request and payment of all costs involved, Client is entitled to a copy of all final plans and specifications for use in

connection with the project for which the plans and specifications have been prepared Client acknowledges that its right to utilize final plans and specifications and the services of Consultant provided pursuant to
this agreement will continue only so long as Client is not in default, pursuant to the terms and conditions of this agreement, and Client has performed all its obligations under this agreement

Client agrees not to use or permit any other person to use plans, specifications, drawings, cast estimates, reports or other documents prepared by Consultant which pians, specifications, drawings, cost estimates,

reports or other documents are not final and which are not signed and stamped or sealed by Consultant  Client shall be responsible for any such use of non-final plans, specifications, drawings, cost estimates,

reports or other documents not signed and stamped or sealed by Consultant. Client hereby waives any claim for liability against Consultant for such use. Client further agrees that final plans, specifications,
drawings, cost estimates, reports or other documents are for the exclusive use of Client and may be used by Client only for the project described as part of this agreement  Such final plans, specifications,
drawings, cost estimates, reparts or other documents may not be changed or used on a different project without written authorization or approval by Consultant. If signed check-prints are required to be submitted
with a stamp or seal, they shall not be considered final for purposes of this paragraph.

12 In accepting and utilizing any drawings, reports and data on any form of electronic media generated and furnished by Consultant, Client covenants and agrees that all such electronic files are instruments of service
of Consultant, who shall be deemed the author, and shall retain all common law, statutory law and other rights, including copyrights. Client agrees not to reuse these electronic files, in whole or in par, for any
purpose or project other than the project that is the subject of this agreement. Client agrees not to transfer these electronic files to others without the prior written consent of Consultant. Client further agrees to
waive all claims against Consultant resulting in any way from any unauthorized changes or reuse of the electronic files for any ather project by anyone other than Consuitant Client and Consultant agree that any
electronic files furnished by either party shall conform to the CADD specifications fisted in Exhibit A. Any changes to the CADD specifications by either Client or Consultant are subject to review and acceptance by
the other party. Additional services by Consultant made necessary by changes to the CADD or other software specifications shall be compensated for as additional services. Electronic files furnished by either
party shall be subject to an acceptance period of fifteen (15) days during which the receiving party agrees to perform appropriate acceptance tests The party furnishing the electronic file shall correct any
discrepancies or errors detected and reported within the acceptance period. After the acceptance period the electronic files shall be deemed to be accepted and neither party shall have any obligation to correct
errors or maintain electronic files Client is aware that differences may exist between the electronic files delivered and the printed hard copy construction documents  In the event of a conflict between the signed
construction documents prepared by Consultanit and electronic files, the signed and stamped or sealed hard copy construction documents shall govern. In addition, Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by
law, to indemnify and hold harmless Consuiltant, its officers, directors, employees, agents and subconsultants against all damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees and defense costs,
arising from any changes made by anyone other than Consultant or from any reuse of the electronic files without the prior written consent of Consultant. Under no circumstances shall defivery of electronic files for
use by Client be deemed a sale by Consultant, and Consultant makes no warranties, either express or implied, of merchantability and fitness for any particular purpose  In no event shall Consuitant be liable for
indirect or consequential damages as a result of Client's use or reuse of the electronic files.

13 Consultant makes no representations concerning soils o geological conditions unless specifically included in writing in this agreement, or by amendments to this agreement, and shall not be responsible for any
liability that may arise out of the making of o failure to make soils or geological surveys, subsurface soils or geological tests, or general soil or geological testing.

14. Client acknowledges Consultant has the right to complete all services agreed to be rendered pursuant to this agreement In the event this agreement is terminated before the completion of all senvices, unless
Consultant is responsible for such early termination, Client agrees to release Consultant from all liability for services performed. in the event all or any portion of the services by Consultant are suspended,
abandoned, or otherwise terminated, Client shall pay Consultant all fees and charges for services provided prior to termination, not to exceed the contract limits specified herein, if any Client acknowledges if the
project services are suspended and restarted, there will be additional charges due to suspension of the services which shall be paid for by Client as extra services pursuant to paragraph 27 Client acknowledges if
project services are terminated for the convenience of Client, Consultant is entitled to reasonable termination costs and expenses, to be paid by Client as extra services pursuant to paragraph 27.

15. If the scope of services to be provided by Consultant pursuant to the terms of this agreement includes an ALTA survey, Client agrees that Consultant may sign one of the ALTA survey statements attached to this
agreement and incorporated herein by reference In the event Consuitant is required to sign a statement or certificate which differs from the ALTA survey statements contained in the attachment to this agreement,
Client hereby agrees to indemnify and hold Consultant harmless from any and all liability arising from or resulting from the signing of any statement which differs from those statements contained in the attachment
to this agreement.

16, It the scope of services to be provided by Consultant pursuant to the terms of this agreement includes the preparation of grading plans but excludes construction staking services, Client acknowledges that such
staking services normally include coordinating civil engineering services and the preparation of record drawings based upon information provided by others, and Client wilt be required to retain such services from
another consultant or pay Consultant pursuant to this agreement for such services as extra services in accordance with paragraph 27.

17.1t the scope of services contained in this agreement does not include construction-phase services for this project, Client acknowledges such construction-phase services will be provided by Client or by others and
Client assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the contract documents and for construction observation and supervision and waives any claim against Consultant that may in any way be connected thereto.
In addition, Client agrees to indemnify and hoid Consultant harmiess from any loss, claim, or cast, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of defense, arising or resulting from the performance of such
services by other persons or entities and from any and all claims arising from the modification, clarification, interpretation, adjustments or changes made to the contract documents to reflect changed field or other
conditions, except for claims arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of Consuitant.

18, Consultant shall be entitled to immediately, and without notice, suspend the performance of any and all of its obligations pursuant to this agreement if Client files a voluntary petition seeking relief under the United
States Bankruptcy Code or if there is an involuntary bankruptcy petition filed against Client in the United States Bankruptcy Court, and that petition is not dismissed within fifteen (15) days of its filing. Any
suspension of services made pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph shall continue until such time as this agreement has been fully and properly assumed in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
United States Bankruptcy Code and in compliance with the final order or judgment issued by the Bankruptcy Court. If the suspension of performance of Consultant's obligation pursuant to this agreement
continues for a pericd in excess of ninety (30) days, Consultant shalt have the right to terminate all services pursuant to this agreement,

19, This agreement shall not be construed to alter, affect or waive any design professional’s lien, mechanic's lien or stop notice right which Consultant may have for the performance of services pursuant to this
agreement. Client agrees to provide to Consultant the present name and address of the record owner of the property upon which the pr